
   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      February 20, 2007      Page 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LYON 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  
MEETING MINUTES 
February 20, 2007 

 
 

Approved as corrected on March 19, 2007 

DATE:   February 20, 2007 

TIME:  7:30 PM 

PLACE:  58000 Grand River 

 

 Call to Order:  Mr. Erwin called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

 

         Roll Call:  Present: William Erwin, Chairman 

Michael Hawkins 

Tony Raney 

Mike Barber (PC Liaison) 

Dan Cash, Trustee (Board Liaison) 

    

                   Also Present:  Philip Seymour, Township Attorney 

      Al Hogan, Building Official 

      Chris Olson, Township Superintendent 

       

    Guests:  22 

 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

  

 Mr. Hawkins noted an error on the December 18, 2006 minutes for the Recording Secretary to 

 correct. 

  

 Mr. Barber made a motion to approve the minutes from the December 18, 2006 meeting as 

corrected.  Mr. Hawkins supported the motion. 

 

Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

             Abstain: Erwin 

 

   Motion approved. 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 

 Thomas Marino, 59655 Woodfarm, South Lyon, MI 48178. 

Sidwell 21-32-400-037.  Applicant request a variance from Section 18.03, A-2, to allow for a 10’ side 

yard setback for a detached storage structure, as opposed to the 30’ required by Section 36.02  

Schedule of Regulations fro the R-1.0 zoning district.  Tabled at 12/18/06 meeting. 

 

It was noted that correspondence was received from the applicant requesting that this issue be 

tabled again for one month. 

 

Mr. Raney moved to table Mr. Marino’s application until next month.  Mr. Barber supported the  

motion. 

 

   Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      February 20, 2007      Page 2 
 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 

 Metro PCS – John Szutarski, 58000 West Eight Mile Road, Northville, MI 48167 

 Sidwell #21-33-451-001.  Applicant requests a variance from Section 19.02, Y-3-5, to allow for a 

 72’ side yard setback for a wireless communication monopole tower, opposed to the required 

 minimum setback equal to the total height of the monopole (120’). 

 

 John Szutarski, Metro PCS, explained that they are proposing to construct a 120’ monopole which 

 would support two carriers currently and three more collocations.  He stated that they did try to 

 secure a site within an industrial district, but were unable to do so, therefore, they approached 

 John Hutto at Country Storage.  He stated that they did walk the property and Mr. Hutto explained 

 that he did not want the tower at the front of the property, therefore, they went toward the back 

 of the property on the east side.  He noted that there is only one access portion at the back of  

 the property, which is over a creek bed and a small culvert.  He stated that they have put this 

 tower as close to the property line without it being a severe setback issue.  He noted that they are 

 currently 72’ from the property but 102’ is required.  He stated that they have provided supporting 

 documentation of structural analysis to support that the tower will collapse onto itself.  He stated 

 that they are requesting a 48’ setback variance from the ordinance with the hardship being the 

 topography and proximity of residential and trying to minimize the impact. 

 

 Mark Jones, T-Mobile, 12170 Merriman, Livonia, 48150, explained that they have come to support 

 Metro PCS and are also a co-applicant for this tower.  He stated that they were before the  

 Planning Commission several weeks ago and received preliminary approval.  He discussed the 

 conditions that the Planning Commission placed upon them.  He stated that in placing the tower 

 where they did, they wanted to be as far as possible from the residential units.  He stated that they 

 are 791’ away from the property line where the mobile home park starts, they are 476’ away from 

 Eight Mile Road property line.  He noted that they have an odd shape parcel, a triangle which is 

landlocked.  They have designed this for five carriers. 

 

Mr. Jones displayed a coverage map.  He noted that they are collocating on every tower in 

the surrounding areas.  By placing a tower at this site, they are filling a hole in coverage. 

 

Mr. Barber stated that the Planning Commission was concerned with how this tower would fall  

during a bad storm.  Mr. Jones noted that they have provided a letter from an engineer indicating  

that the tower would fall on itself. 

 

Mr. Erwin asked if there were any public comments.  John Hutto, 58000 Eight Mile Road, stated that 

he is the property owner.  He stated that the reason why they were so restrictive with the location 

is that they have a very large earth berm that would camouflage the facility.  He stated that they 

also wanted to place the tower back off Eight Mile Road so that it would not interfere with the 

view shed along Eight Mile Road.  He stated that he is in favor of the variance being granted. 

 

Mr. Erwin stated that he does not see where there is a hardship.  He stated that the owner of the 

property just stated that this is where he wanted to place the tower.  He stated that the hardship 

was placed on the applicant by the owner, not by the Township ordinances. 

 

Mr. Hawkins questioned if there was any possibility of the applicant purchasing additional property 

so that they would not need a variance.  Mr. Hutto responded that the rest of the property is 

already improved or has an approved site plan for development.  He stated that he did not feel 

that it would be economically feasible to place this tower in another spot. 

 

After further discussion it was determined that there was no hardship, therefore, Mr. Erwin called for  

a motion. 



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      February 20, 2007      Page 3 
 

  

 Mr. Hawkins made a motion in regards to Metro PCS application for a variance for a side yard 

 setback with respect to Section 19.02, Y-3-5, with regards to the minimum setback needed for  

 the height of the tower.  The applicant has not demonstrated sufficient difficulties and that there 

 are other options available, therefore, the applicant’s request should be denied.  Mr. Raney  

supported the motion. 

 

   Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 

 Interra-Vision development, LLC, 7488 Bold Venture Court, Lewis Center, OH  43035 

 Sidwell #21-32-100-002, #21-32-100-006 and #21-32-100-008.  Applicant requests a variance from 

 Section 16.08, C-1, to allow for an additional monument sign. 

 

 Paul Fransway, 27988 Woodstream, Lyon Township, stated that he is here on behalf of Interra-Vision 

 along with David Skidmore, representative for the developer, and Mike Palermo, Palermo Dance 

 Studio.  He explained that a Walgreen’s is approved to be built on this property.  He stated that  

 they are here on behalf of the developer to address the two buildings at the rear of this site that 

 will be visibly blocked once Walgreen’s is constructed.  He noted that the buildings in the rear 

 have always had small signs.   

 

 Mr. Fransway stated that once the Walgreen’s is completed the traffic flow in the area, which is 

 already bad, may get worse.  He stated that they are trying to alleviate any potential problems. 

 He stated that their request is for an additional monument sign out front that would be used for 

 the two buildings in the rear.   

 

 Mr. Fransway felt that this is one of the most unique situations within the township that he has seen, 

 one parcel with a lot of buildings on it.  He noted that this will parcel will remain one parcel, but 

 that there is talk of condominimizing it. 

 

 Mr. Fransway felt that by having a second monument sign it was in the best interest of the health, 

 safety and welfare of the community.  He stated that by having a sign there would allow people 

 to see where the development is.  He noted that if this was three separate parcels, there would be 

 three separate signs. 

 

 There was discussion as to the location of the proposed sign and the possibility of putting the 

 advertisements on the Walgreen’s sign.  It was noted that Walgreen’s is not willing to add the 

 two names to their sign.   

 

 The Board briefly discussed this issue amongst themselves.  Several of the Board members  

 indicated that they did not have a problem with this.  They felt that these two businesses needed 

 recognition on a sign. 

 

 Mr. Erwin asked if there were any public comments regarding this issue.   

 

 Nick Plane, 28459 Dixboro Road, stated that his daughter is a student at Palermo Dance Studio and 

 that he is in favor of a sign being constructed.  He noted that the driveway is not easy to see. 

 

 Mr. Hogan felt that a monument sign would be less cluttered than what is already there.  Mr. Erwin 

 felt that the sign would be better if placed on Nine Mile Road.  It was noted that the entrance off 

 Nine Mile Road is not yet constructed and won’t be constructed for some time. 

 

 Mr. Erwin questioned of there is any way that Mr. Skidmore can negotiate with Walgreen’s to have 



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      February 20, 2007      Page 4 
 

 these two business also indicated on the Walgreen’s sign.  Mr. Skidmore stated that he has  

 negotiated with the Township and with Walgreen’s on many issues, but the issue of the sign is  

 non-negotiable with Walgreen’s.  He stated that Walgreen’s is aware of what the sign ordinance 

 indicates and they have used the allotted share. 

 

 Mr. Hawkins made a motion in regard to Interra-Vision Development, LLC, request for a second  

 monument sign for Sidwell #21-32-100-002, #21-32-100-006 and #21-32-100-008, the applicant’s 

 request for a variance from 16.08, C-1, to allow for an additional monument sign, it is  

recommended to the Board, due to the uniqueness of the property which is being developed  

with a new building that will block two existing structures with existing established businesses, that 

a second monument sign be permitted along Pontiac Trail at the specified location on the 

submittal.  This particular property with parcels 1, 2 and 3 will be limited to a total of two 

monument signs along Pontiac Trail and one additional along Nine Mile Road, per the ordinance. 

The second monument sign along Pontiac Trail will be limited is size, 9.4’ x 5’, which is 33-1/2 total 

square feet.  This is a unique piece of property with an application from an existing businesses as 

well as public safety regarding the identification of these business along Pontiac Trail.  Mr. Raney  

supported the motion. 

 

   Voice Vote:  Ayes: Barber, Cash, Hawkins, Raney 

      Nays: Erwin 

 

   Motion approved. 

 

 Timothy Philip Stone, 28600 Dixboro Road, South Lyon, MI  48178 

 Sidwell #21-07-100-010.  Applicant requests a variance from Section 18.01, which requires the 

 appearance of an accessory building to be compatible with the principal building. 

 

 Timothy Stone, Jr. explained that they are requesting a variance to construct a accessory building, 

 which they have already purchased.  This building will be used to store the vehicles in that they are 

 restoring.  He noted that they have already moved some of the vehicles to a storage unit off the 

 property.  He stated that their hardship is the fact that his father has lost his job and been unable to 

 find another one, his mother is working several jobs to help with the bills, they are running out of 

 money paying the storage bills and the fact that they have already purchased the building that 

 they want to construct. 

 

 Mr. Hogan stated that they are allowed another accessory building because of the amount of  

 property that they have, but a Quonset hut style is not allowed.  This style does not match the 

 existing structures on the property.  The existing barn has a gambrel roof, which the Township does 

 not have issues with. 

 

 Mr. Erwin asked if there were any public comments regarding this issue. 

 

 The following residents spoke of the blight issue on the property: 

  

  Judy Biber  28328 Dixboro Road 

  Mark Gardner  28440 Dixboro Road 

  John Liss  13850 Lloyd Drive 

  Mary Pieragostini 28275 Dixboro Road 

  John Vigilitti  20500 Dixboro Road 

 

Mr. Hogan asked Mr. Erwin to remind the residents that they are not here to discuss the blight, the  

blight issue is being handled by the Township Zoning Officer.  They are here to discuss the type of  

building the applicant would like to construct.  

 

Mr. Hogan stated that the blight issue is on hold right now to see if the applicant is granted the 



   

 

       Charter Township of Lyon Zoning Board of Appeals                      February 20, 2007      Page 5 
 

requested variance.  If the variance is not granted, the blight issue will be dealt with.  He noted 

that there may be some CDBG funds available for help with the cleanup of the property, if they 

qualify for them. 

 

The residents indicated that they are in favor of the Board denying the variance request for this  

applicant.  It was noted that there is not another building of this type at all along Dixboro Road. 

 

Mr. Hogan noted that the size of the building is allowable, it is the appearance of the building 

that is in question tonight. 

 

Mr. Stone, Jr. indicated that they did come to the building department to inquire if they could build 

another building on their property.  He indicated that they were told the size structure that they 

could build so they purchased the building.  Mr. Stone, Sr. stated that they were told that anything  

could be built as long as it was within the allowable square footage.  Mr. Stone, Jr. stated that is  

when they purchased the building.  Mr. Hogan indicated that the first time he saw the plans in  

when he told them that they could not build this style of building on the property.  He noted that  

the ladies in his department did not tell them what style building they could build, they told them  

the amount of square footage that they could have. 

 

After further brief discussion, Mr. Erwin asked for a motion. 

 

 Mr. Hawkins made a motion in regard Timothy Philip Stone’s application for Sidwell 21-07-100-010, 

 the applicant has not demonstrated sufficient information or documentation to support the 

 building’s compliance with the general structures in the area.  The public would not be done  

correct justice or services. It is recommended to the Board that this application be denied.  Mr. 

Cash supported the motion. 

 

   Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

      Nays: None 

 

   Motion approved. 

 

3. GENERAL BOARD DISCUSSION   NONE     

 

4. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 Mr. Erwin adjourned the meeting at 9:24 PM. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Deby Cothery 
Deby Cothery  

Recording Secretary        


